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IN THE MATTER OF THE UNITED 
EFFORT PLAN TRUST, (Dated 
November 9, 1942, Amended 
April 10, 1946 and Amended 
and Restated on November 3, 
1998); and its, TRUSTEES, 
including known trustees 
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JEFFS, LEROY JEFFS, WINSTON 
BLACKMORE, JAMES ZITTING 
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Transcript prepared from electronic recording

 

Reporter:  Tamra J. Berry, CSR, RPR
Notary Public in and for the State of Utah
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P R O C E E D I N G S

THE COURT:  Good afternoon. 

MR. RICHARDS:  Good afternoon, your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  We are on the record on 

case number 053900848.  

This is the matter of the United Effort 

Plan Trust, and this is a telephonic status 

conference requested by the Attorney General for 

Arizona.  

Do I have Mr. Richards?  

MR. RICHARDS:  You do, your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  And I am told that I 

have on the line everyone except Mr. Evans, 

Mr. Bradshaw and Mr. Zimmerman.  

And that everybody else, Mr. Shields, Mr. 

Bodily, Mr. Okazaki, Mr. Hamilton, Mr. Parker, 

Mr. Hoole, Mr. Sampson, Mr. Richards and Mr. Leavitt 

are on.  Is that all correct?  

MR. OKAZAKI:  Yes, your Honor.  This is 

Ken Okazaki, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  All right.  

Mr. Richards, I have reviewed your 

emergency report, and I'm a little at a loss.  I 

think you raised a lot of significant issues that 
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need to be addressed in an evidentiary hearing.  I 

believe that that needs to be scheduled as an order 

to show cause hearing with -- supported by affidavits 

from the various individuals who are -- essentially 

what you're alleging in your emergency report is that 

the Court -- orders of the Court are consistently and 

routinely being disregarded by a number of people, 

including most notably the police department or the 

marshal's office of Hilldale and Colorado City.  But 

that those individuals have had notice of the Court's 

orders, and they're essentially ignoring them.  

I am concerned that in the paperwork that 

I received, there are references made to a city 

prosecutor or other attorney who apparently is -- or 

is allegedly advising the marshal's office.  But I 

see no name given for that individual.  I don't know 

if that individual has been identified, but we need 

to identify that person. 

MR. RICHARDS:  Yes, your Honor, I can 

identify him for you.  In fact, I think if you 

reviewed some of the videotapes -- I apologize, 

Judge, this is Mr. Richards. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MR. RICHARDS:  If you view some of the 

videotapes that we provided you, they identify him as 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

In the matter of UEP Trust * July 22, 2010 

CITICOURT, LLC
801.532.3441

5

Mr. Brendel.  His name is Ken Brendel.  I believe 

that's B-r-e-n-d-e-l.  He is a contract attorney out 

of the Flagstaff firm of -- I believe it's Mangum, 

Wall, Stoops. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  And he is separate from 

the -- because I understood that it was Mr. Stirba's 

firm that represented the cities. 

MR. HAMILTON:  Civilly, yes, your Honor.  

This is Blake Hamilton. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  So what relationship, 

if any, do you have with Mr. Brendel?  

MR. HAMILTON:  He is the prosecutor for 

Colorado City.  That's the relationship we have.  We 

don't have a relationship further than that.  

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MR. HAMILTON:  And the prosecutor for 

Hilldale is Deputy Washington County Attorney 

Zach Wyler.  Probably he's involved in any of the 

matters that are alleged in the report of Bill 

Richards. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. HAMILTON:  I think it's all the 

Colorado City bunch. 

THE COURT:  Right.  Well, obviously, 

Mr. Brendel is an important person that I'm going to 
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need to have brought to court as well by subpoena, if 

necessary.  

And I do apologize, I reviewed everything 

that was submitted except until just about ten 

minutes before this phone call I had been unable to 

view the recordings that had been attached.  Although 

my clerk's computer had allowed her to do that, I 

have not been able to review those.  

And then I realized or I was informed by 

our IT department that I was lacking the necessary 

software.  So they installed it, and so I now am 

going to be able to review it.  I just haven't been 

able to do that up until now.  

But it seems to me that what we need to do 

is -- I'm going to treat this submission as basically 

a request for an order to show cause hearing.  But it 

will need to be pursuant to the statute, will need to 

be supported by affidavits.  And so if there have 

been -- you know, whether they're affidavits from 

Mr. Stubbs or affidavits from Mr. Wyler or from 

whoever else has had personal experience in dealing 

with the allegations that are made here, I'm going to 

need to have that.  

And then the -- if necessary, we'll -- 

we'll need to have each officer involved, as well as 
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the center manager and the city prosecutor and 

whatever brought to court.  And we'll hold an 

evidentiary hearing to address the concerns because I 

do believe that you have raised serious concerns that 

merit an evidentiary hearing.  

The problem is that you've styled it as a 

status conference and at least under our protocol, 

status conferences, I'm not able to provide the 

relief that you're seeking in a status conference.  

It really does seem to be that you are asking for a 

finding of contempt.  And that would require an 

evidentiary hearing with proper notice. 

MR. RICHARDS:  Your Honor, this is 

Mr. Richards.  

Is it appropriate at this point for me to 

elaborate a little bit?  

THE COURT:  Absolutely. 

MR. RICHARDS:  Your Honor, I think what 

you are suggesting is a valid and a valuable process.  

One of the reasons that we styled this as a report 

was to give the Court discretion to identify for the 

parties those issues that the Court felt it was 

appropriate to address going forward.  I think you 

hit the nail on the head with respect to some of 

these contempt issues.  Your Honor, one of the 
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problems though that we have is the issues go 

certainly far beyond just the local law enforcement, 

local city officials.  As we have pointed out, I 

believe in the filing there have been issues 

involving, for example, removal of well pump 

equipment. 

THE COURT:  No.  I didn't know. 

MR. RICHARDS:  Of the destruction of lots, 

the removal of no trespassing signs, the running of 

livestock off of property.  It's a -- for example, at 

the Berrymore Farm issue, the plowing under of those 

farm properties and things.  

The dispute that is alleged there is that 

members of the FLDS have a -- some sort of a 

preexisting religious stewardship, not as we 

understand evidenced by any sort of actual 

conveyance.  In fact, their affidavits of their 

bishops styled with you previously appeared to 

indicate exactly to the contrary, that they don't 

have and they do not make these stewardships by any 

sort of a legal conveyance.  But these folks have 

taken it upon themselves to simply go out and assume 

the property and to interfere with the use of that 

property by those who have been granted an occupancy 

agreement or a lease by the special fiduciary.  
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We're also concerned, Judge, that there 

has been these issues involving removal of property.  

The same with removal of well cap, removal of well 

equipment, the listing of property that Mr. Stubbs 

had put on, the trust property with the fiduciary 

authorization and removal of (inaudible) from that 

property, all of which would also be a violation of 

the Court's pending injunction order.  

And we don't have all the evidence we need 

on who precisely is responsible for that.  There's 

certainly allegations about who is responsible.  And 

I (inaudible) believe that given those allegations, 

it may be appropriate for Mr. Okazaki or Mr. Parker 

to address whether any of their clients have had any 

involvement in any of those issues.  But at this 

point we are without sufficient information to bring 

all that in the way we would like to to the Court. 

THE COURT:  Right. 

MR. RICHARDS:  That is one of the reasons 

that we have filed with you last December our motion 

that was fully briefed by I believe January asking to 

partially lift the stay to allow us to conduct 

discovery involving these sort of property disputes, 

disputes over water rights, and all those sorts of 

things which have been pending now and we believe 
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creating far greater tension in the community.  

My suggestion, your Honor, and it's only a 

suggestion, but it would be that the Court grant the 

order that we previously had submitted to you on that 

that had been filed for submission now for some time, 

allow us to initiate that discovery process with the 

order that at the end of -- I think we had a 

four-month period -- at the end of which we were 

asking you to order us to file a report with the 

Court on various issues.  

But in the meantime also give us a shorter 

time period, and I'm going to give the suggestion of 

30 days from now, in which we would submit to the 

Court any appropriate requests for an order to show 

cause based upon the initial discovery we've been 

able to complete, plus the information that we 

already have to get that process going.  But the 

issues involving the police, involving the immediate 

violation to the Court's order are part and parcel of 

the problem.  

Your Honor, I would make one other 

suggestion, if I could.  And that is that the police 

attitude -- and Mr. Stirba can (inaudible) me and 

Mr. Hamilton can certainly elaborate on this.  In 

fact, I was informed by Mr. Hamilton himself, not Mr. 
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Brendel, last fall that they were training or 

retrained the police department to take -- simply 

take reports rather than citing individuals on site 

for trespassing.  

And my understanding is that based upon 

watching the videotapes and seeing this, the police 

attitude is, well, they either -- the Court's orders 

are not clear enough, because you will see in some of 

those tapes that members of Mr. -- representatives of 

Mr. Wisan are actually showing the orders to the 

police officers.  They are reading the transcripts 

that -- of your statements on enforcement of the 

leases from last July to the police officers.  But 

the police officers are responding that, Well, we 

need another court order.  We need another court 

order.  

THE COURT:  Right.

MR. RICHARDS:  And basically indicating 

this isn't enough.  Well, it's either not clear 

enough to them or they don't believe that you've 

actually issued an order on the enforceability of the 

leases issued by the occupancy agreement issued by 

the special fiduciary.  Even in some cases there are 

comments made indicating that you do not have 

jurisdiction.  
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THE COURT:  Right.

MR. RICHARDS:  I guess the argument is -- 

and again Mr. Hamilton can elaborate -- I guess the 

argument is that you don't have jurisdiction in 

Arizona, for example, to order anything.  We would 

dispute that, Judge, on multiple grounds, some of 

which we've briefed for you.

THE COURT:  Right. 

MR. RICHARDS:  We believe your 

jurisdiction extends over the entire realm of the 

trust, and we believe that your pro tem powers extend 

certainly to anybody in violation of your order 

whether they're in Arizona, Utah or elsewhere. 

THE COURT:  I agree. 

MR. RICHARDS:  And we also believe that -- 

and know that the fiduciary has domesticated many of 

your orders, including the injunction order in 

Arizona -- 

THE COURT:  Right. 

MR. RICHARDS:  -- in any event.  But 

because of the attitude that has been displayed by 

the local police and local government officials, we 

think it would be helpful to maintaining the peace, 

to deescalating the disputes in the local community 

for the short term while the discovery process goes 
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forward and while the orders to show cause are 

developed for the Court to issue some interim order 

so that there is no continuing argument that you have 

not spoken clearly enough or that you have not 

addressed the issues or the special fiduciary's 

authority to lease property.  And, your Honor, if I 

could, I can elaborate on what I think that other 

order would look like.  

MR. OKAZAKI:  Excuse me, this is 

Ken Okazaki speaking.  

Your Honor, we didn't even know what this 

phone conference was about, and we are not prepared 

to argue anything.  And I hear motions being made -- 

THE COURT:  The motion was made in 

writing, and you have a copy of that.  

MR. HAMILTON:  We have had a copy, but 

your Honor -- this is Blake Hamilton, we've had a 

copy but we took that to mean a motion -- that 

Arizona Attorney General's office was making a motion 

with this report and we still have time to file a 

response, and we plan on filing a response. 

THE COURT:  Just a minute.  Just a minute.  

Just a minute.  

There then was then a -- the motion that 

Mr. Richards is addressing, as I understand it, is a 
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motion that -- for lifting the -- the partial lifting 

of the stay and allowing discovery to proceed, that 

has been fully briefed.  That has been noticed.  That 

has been pending.  You have had plenty of opportunity 

to respond to that.  So this is not a new motion.  

This is -- he's just reminding the Court that there 

has been a motion that apparently I have not 

addressed, although I am aware that it existed and I 

thought I had addressed it.  But if we have not, I -- 

I am prepared to do that.  But that is not something 

you haven't had the opportunity to respond to.  

MR. OKAZAKI:  But if this is the time -- 

this is Ken Okazaki speaking, your Honor -- if this 

is the time set for oral argument, we (inaudible) 

because we're going to argue it right now.  And 

second, we don't even know -- we didn't even know 

what this phone conference was about.  There are 

emails circulating does anybody know what this phone 

conference is about.  And -- 

THE COURT:  Well, and -- 

MR. OKAZAKI:  -- (inaudible) answers.  

THE COURT:  Well, since you were served 

with copies of Mr. Richards's motion and requests for 

an expedited status conference and you've received 

notice -- you would have -- you know, I think it 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

In the matter of UEP Trust * July 22, 2010 

CITICOURT, LLC
801.532.3441

15

would have been reasonable to say -- to understand 

that this is what we were addressing today. 

MR. OKAZAKI:  I -- 

THE COURT:  In any event, I -- and I do 

dispute the question that I have to hold oral 

argument on everything.  When briefing is as 

exhaustive as it is in this case by all sides, I 

don't have to have oral argument on every motion.  

And not every motion under our rules requires oral 

argument.  And in fact, it is my practice in most 

cases not to schedule oral argument on most motions, 

unless they're required by Rule -- Rule 7.  

MR. PARKER:  But, your Honor -- this is 

Rod Parker speaking -- the problem is that you're 

having -- as I see it, two problems.  One is that 

you're having half of an oral argument.  But more 

than that, there are a lot of representations that 

were made by Mr. Richards that are simply not true.  

They're very disputed.  And so to the extent he's 

attempting to make a factual argument that he's then 

attempting to attach to a motion that was, say, six 

months ago and then make new factual allegations to 

bolster the motion, I think Mr. Okazaki is exactly 

right.  And I think what the Court needs to recognize 

with regard to what Arizona is saying is this is -- 
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there is another side to the story that -- 

THE COURT:  And that's what -- 

MR. PARKER:  -- you need to know about.  

They're about evictions without due process.  You 

know, the fiduciary is taking the position, Arizona 

is taking the position that they are basically 

dictators down there and that people with property 

rights can simply be ignored -- 

THE COURT:  Well, just -- 

MR. PARKER:  -- and the -- 

THE COURT:  Excuse me -- 

MR. PARKER:  -- (inaudible).

THE COURT:  -- excuse me, excuse me, Mr. 

Parker.  I'm not going to be hearing oral argument on 

this today.  I -- while I disagree with some of your 

representations because -- well, I disagree with some 

of your characterizations.  I will -- I am not 

prepared to hear argument today on this matter.  What 

I am prepared to do is schedule an oral -- I mean to 

schedule an evidentiary hearing on those -- on that 

part of the -- I am persuaded that based on the 

representations that have been brought here, which is 

as it is in any other order to show cause, people 

have the opportunity to respond and they will -- they 

will be given the opportunity to respond and present 
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whatever testimony they wish to.  

The Court needs to make an initial 

determination of whether there is enough basis there 

to warrant further hearing.  All I'm saying is there 

is enough shown here to warrant further hearing. 

MR. PARKER:  There's no (inaudible), your 

Honor. 

THE COURT:  Sir -- 

MR. PARKER:  At least that's my 

(inaudible). 

THE COURT:  That's why I am saying that I 

am not prepared to act today.  That's why I've told 

Mr. Richards that I'm going to need affidavits.  To 

the extent that they can be documented, that's going 

to be the extent of what the order to show cause can 

address.  And it will have to be supported, and it 

will have to be properly presented.  That's not at 

all inconsistent with what I said at the beginning of 

this -- of this telephonic conference.  

Now, I -- I believed that I had addressed 

that the earlier motion that has been -- that is -- I 

am being told now had not been addressed.  And -- but 

I am aware that that motion for allowing discovery to 

proceed had been fully briefed by everyone.  

MR. PARKER:  Your Honor, this is Rod 
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Parker again. 

THE COURT:  No. 

MR. PARKER:  I would just say one more 

thing about -- just procedurally here.  You also have 

still, I think, pending before you the motion to 

intervene that we filed.  And it was not decided.  

And I -- 

THE COURT:  Can I -- can I -- 

MR. PARKER:  -- (inaudible).

THE COURT:  I'm sorry.  I'm sorry. 

MR. PARKER:  Go ahead. 

THE COURT:  Can I ask you because I have 

time and again issued minute entries saying, Guys, I 

don't get the paperwork that you filed.  It is -- 

it's either missing from the file or the file is -- 

frankly, the files have been taken physically from 

me. 

MR. PARKER:  I thought we did put that on 

that motion.  But if not, I apologize. 

THE COURT:  I don't -- I'm looking at my 

clerk, and my clerk has some things. 

THE CLERK:  I don't think I have one from 

Rod Parker. 

THE COURT:  My clerk tells me that she 

does not recall seeing something from you.  
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I said my memory was that we had addressed 

the motion for proceeding in discovery, but maybe 

not.  Maybe I just read all the paperwork but 

didn't -- for some reason did not act on it.  

Those -- that was contemporaneously with the 

arguments before the Supreme Court, if I recall the 

timing correctly. 

MR. RICHARDS:  Yeah.  This is 

Mr. Richards.  I may have a clarification for you.  

About the same time that we submitted our request, 

the special fiduciary had submitted a request.  And 

to be honest, I can't remember the details of it.  

But it did involve some discovery-related issues as 

well.  The Court did rule on that motion. 

THE COURT:  So maybe I just didn't -- 

MR. RICHARDS:  Yes, the Court has not 

issued a ruling on our motion that we filed last 

December. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  In that case my 

apologies.  We will have to dig this up and address 

it.  And -- 

MR. RICHARDS:  And we did -- 

THE COURT:  -- Mr. Parker's -- 

MR. RICHARDS:  I'm sorry, Judge. 

THE COURT:  Go ahead. 
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MR. RICHARDS:  We did submit to you the 

binder that you have requested with all of those 

papers in it I want to say about a month ago, maybe a 

little more.  

THE COURT:  Okay.

MR. RICHARDS:  If you do not have that -- 

THE COURT:  No. 

MR. RICHARDS:  -- we can duplicate that 

very easily. 

THE COURT:  My clerk tells me that she 

does have that one. 

MR. RICHARDS:  Okay.

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MR. PARKER:  And, your Honor, Rod Parker 

again. 

THE COURT:  Yes, Mr. Parker. 

MR. PARKER:  The other thing I wanted to 

say was that is discovery issue, at least in some of 

its form, goes right to the heart of the issues that 

are pending before the Supreme Court on appeal.  And 

I don't think that it's -- I understand the need to 

maintain status quo and those sorts of things that 

are -- 

THE COURT:  Well, it's more than 

maintaining status quo, Counsel.  I have an ongoing 
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responsibility to administer the trust, and I have 

delegated that responsibility or appointed the 

fiduciary to address that.  And if they're -- and 

that administration is ongoing.  And in that sense it 

is not unlike a domestic matter that notwithstanding 

it being on appeal, there are continuing motions that 

are presented to the Court and that still need to be 

addressed for ongoing management purposes. 

MR. PARKER:  Right.  But this is sort of 

like race to -- it's almost like a race to the finish 

line.  It's like trying to get to do things that are 

not necessary to the administration of the trust or 

of immediate importance but long term, like the 

subdivisions and stuff like that, that I think are 

fundamental changes that are not as (inaudible) in 

terms of the daily administration of the trust.  And 

that's what I mean by things going to the heart of 

what's on appeal. 

MR. RICHARDS:  Your Honor. 

MR. PARKER:  That's a different category. 

MR. RICHARDS:  Your Honor, this is Mr. 

Richards, and I can address that.  I think I can 

address that fairly succinctly.  

Mr. Parker says that the issues raised in 

that motion have nothing to do with the ongoing 
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administration of the trust.  Your Honor, a couple 

weeks ago the police appeared at a residence that has 

been rented to a couple, Ron and Ginger Cook, by the 

special fiduciary with this Court's authorization.  

The Cooks have pending now a lawsuit from our office 

in a private lawsuit against government officials 

there for a -- discrimination and violation of 

housing laws. 

THE COURT:  Oh, this is the one where the 

front yard was dug up?  

MR. RICHARDS:  Yes.  Your Honor, now, in 

contrast to a few days earlier when clients 

apparently -- (inaudible) represented.  I don't know 

if they are Mr. Okazaki's and Mr. Parker's clients.  

But (inaudible) represented while plowing up the 

field that Mr. Stubbs had leased.  And the police 

were there, and the police refused to do anything.  

The police showed up at the insistence of a gentleman 

who claims he is from an irrigation company and that 

the Cooks are stealing his irrigation company water.

Now the Court should be aware, from our 

filing last December, that irrigation water and the 

rights of that irrigation water are in serious 

dispute.  In fact, there is evidence that that water 

right was quitclaimed in 1998 from the corporate 
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entity that we can't find any corporate existence of 

to an entity created by a group that includes a 

gentleman named William Jessop.  I don't know if 

that's the William Jessop in this case or not, your 

Honor.  But that issue was raised and is one of the 

issues in this dispute that needs to be addressed by 

this Court.  

Now, the police show up, and they are 

informed -- and you will see it on the videotape we 

provided you -- they are informed that that issue is 

in dispute and that the trust in fact claims that 

water as the trust's water rights.  Nevertheless, the 

police officer orders a backhoe onto the property and 

leaves it dug up.  (Inaudible) an enormous hole in 

their front yard.  Now, your Honor, I can't think of 

anything that involves more of the ongoing, 

day-to-day administration of the trust than that sort 

of issue.  When you have individuals who are being 

molested in their right to use this property under a 

written lease from this Court's authority, that are 

told that they can't stop the police, that the police 

can come on there and that it's their word against 

the irrigation company.  

Putting that (inaudible) Judge, shortly 

thereafter, the irrigation company sent an invoice to 
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the Cooks for digging up their front yard. 

THE COURT:  Right.  You provided that as 

an exhibit. 

MR. RICHARDS:  Yes.  And your Honor, that 

is on the letterhead that (inaudible) a company again 

from which we can't find any corporate existence.  

This is the type of thing that's going on.  This is 

the type of thing that we believe requires the 

Court's immediate involvement.  And, your Honor, if I 

could add a couple other points, Mr. Okazaki sits on 

a (inaudible), and he enclosed in the accusations 

about Mr. Cook and the (inaudible) police officer 

there.  And -- 

THE COURT:  I do -- 

MR. RICHARDS:  -- we file an objection 

then, your Honor.  We do.  And that is a result of 

Mr. Crook resigning from the evaluating board that 

(inaudible) to. 

THE COURT:  Right.  And I am aware of 

that. 

MR. RICHARDS:  They point out allegations 

about Mr. Stubbs that he has allegedly assaulted 

children, he and his mother had assaulted children.  

Mr. Parker has filed with the Washington County 

Court, just -- I believe in the last week and a half, 
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an ex-parte application for a temporary retraining 

order to prevent Mr. Stubbs from executing on or 

using the lease he was given for grain dens on UEP 

property. 

THE COURT:  Right. 

MR. RICHARDS:  In that or with that 

filing, I understand he submitted an affidavit 

explaining the reason -- this is by -- from Mr. 

Parker himself -- explaining that the reason for an 

ex-parte order against Mr. Stubbs restraining him was 

that Mr. Stubbs has been guilty of self-help 

activities lately that made it dangerous somehow to 

give him notice in advance.  

Your Honor, I will tell you that we don't 

agree with self-help activities by anybody.  We don't 

agree with people going onto the leased property that 

Mr. Stubbs has leased and opening the gates, running 

his cattle off or running his livestock off.  We 

don't agree with people shutting off the utilities to 

the property because they don't think that the person 

who's leased that property has a right to be there.  

We don't feel that's self-help anywhere.  

And we agree with Mr. Okazaki and with Mr. 

Parker that this sort of thing has gotten out of hand 

and has become unacceptable.  One of the reasons we 
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believe this has gotten out of hand, your Honor, is 

that the local police hide behind the argument that 

this is just a civil dispute, running some cows off 

the property, taking down fences, taking troughs out 

of the property and moving them, capping wells, all 

of these sort of things are mere sinless deeds that 

they can't interfere with.  

And they don't believe that you have 

issued an order that is clear enough that they can 

follow or for them to have to acknowledge the lease 

rights that this Court has authorized Mr. Wisan and 

his lease at this time to issue.  

Your Honor, that is why we believe it is 

appropriate for the Court to clarify its prior order.  

I'm not asking, Judge, for -- in the interim for any 

sort of new relief.  I believe you've been extremely 

clear. 

THE COURT:  Yeah, I don't know 

(inaudible). 

MR. RICHARDS:  (Inaudible) behind the 

fiduciary leases and that you expected them to be 

honored by local law enforcement.  But apparently, 

your Honor -- and Mr. Hamilton can explain why you 

haven't been clear enough -- but apparently you have 

not.  We would ask the Court to do whatever it needs 
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to do in the interim, while we are exploring the 

discovery, while we are preparing an order to show 

cause that may be appropriate, to clarify that the 

Court does in fact stand behind those leases, that 

the person has those leases from the fiduciary as to 

(inaudible) rights that anyone else who doesn't have 

a preexisting written agreement or court order that 

predates that lease. 

MR. PARKER:  Well, now, wait a minute.  

That's -- now, you can't take away the existing 

property rights of somebody else, whether it's real 

property or personal property by fiat like that. 

THE COURT:  Just a moment.  There is no 

preexisting property rights of any alleged 

beneficiary to any land or to anything in the UEP.  

Okay.  There is no preexisting right, period.  There 

is none. 

MR. PARKER:  But, your Honor, there is.  

They're in two senses.  One is the sense of the 

unjust enrichment claims that these people may have 

in the real property; and number two, there are food 

and personal property down there that UEP does not 

own.  

THE COURT:  Well -- 

MR. PARKER:  The granary is one of those 
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properties. 

THE COURT:  Well, the granary is not a 

personal property. 

MR. PARKER:  What?  

THE COURT:  Granaries are not personal 

property.  

MR. PARKER:  They are, your Honor.  I -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.  They're affixed to the 

land.  They're not.  They are -- they're part of the 

realty.  

But in any event, I don't know how to make 

myself any clearer, but I will attempt again.  Every 

order that this Court has issued is to be enforced to 

the letter by anyone in authority, and it is to be 

obeyed by anyone with knowledge of the Court's 

orders.  

Number two, there is absolutely, without 

equivocation, I stand behind the actions of the 

fiduciary insofar as he has entered into leases with 

individuals and individuals have relied on those 

leases to -- those actions by the fiduciary under the 

discretion given to him to administer the trust under 

the Court's supervision, I stand behind those 

actions.  

If there is a problem with those actions, 
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then those can be brought to me, and we'll hold a 

trial and we will result -- resolve once and for all 

substantively what the issues are and where things 

stand.  But in the interim, the presumption is that 

the -- and I wanted to make it very clear, I stand 

behind the actions of the fiduciary in terms of his 

administration of the trust, his -- the leases that 

he has executed.  And if there are legitimate, 

competing claims by anyone who believes that he or 

she has a claim to any particular property, that can 

be certainly addressed in court on a full trial on 

the merits.  

That also indicates -- reinforces the 

notion that discovery is in fact appropriate to be 

done so that we can be -- clarify and everybody can 

understand fully what the claims are and what the 

documentation is being made, if it is behind the 

various claims.  And then as there are -- continue to 

be disputed issues of fact, we'll try the matter. 

MR. PARKER:  Well, your Honor, are you 

giving all of the residents of the property standing 

to participate in those trials insofar as their 

personal injuries are implicated?  Because that seems 

to be the import of what you're saying, that if 

someone claims they own a piece of personal property, 
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they have standing in your court to dispute that.  

THE COURT:  I will need to think through 

how that process can work given my prior rulings of 

who does and doesn't have standing.  

But to the extent that there have been 

individuals who have been occupying UEP land, whether 

they be tenants at sufferance or by, you know, 

possession or whatever, I will have to figure out and 

think through what -- how that evidence is best 

presented so that those concerns can be presented to 

the Court and evaluated.  I'm not sure how to do that 

right now, and I'll have to think about that.  

MR. RICHARDS:  Your Honor, this is Mr. 

Richards.  

One point of clarification, if you would.  

And you've used the term "leases of the special 

fiduciary" in your comment.  I had seen, I believe, 

some folks quibble over your language before using 

the word "lease" and then claiming that a -- 

something entitled an occupancy agreement isn't 

within your order and that's not a lease, that's not 

a conveyance.  I would assume when you're talking 

about leases, you're talking about any sort of 

written agreement by the fiduciary involving the 

property of the trust. 
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THE COURT:  That is absolutely correct.  

Any agreement, any written agreement entered into by 

the special fiduciary, regardless of how denominated 

at this point in the -- is the order of the Court and 

it is to be enforced and it is to be protected.  And 

the people receiving the -- who have entered into 

those agreements with a fiduciary, again, however 

denominated, take superior right at this point over 

any competing claim, pending a further determination 

by the Court of competing claims when they're brought 

in in due time and in proper fashion.  

Now, again we'll have to address how -- 

what that is and how that will need to be done.  But 

it seems to me that this order has to be unequivocal 

and -- 

MR. HAMILTON:  Your Honor, if I may -- 

this is Blake Hamilton -- I'm just a little confused 

about those people that are actually occupying 

property.  Are you saying that a person that's given 

an occupancy agreement can come in and just self-help 

evict somebody?  Because that is not the law of this 

case.  That's not the law generally.

Bob, this case in the minute entry that 

you denied our TRO back on July 21st, 2008, you said 

there was not imminent harm.  Does the unlawful 
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detainer statute apply that they would -- that the 

special fiduciary had to go through that process to 

actually evict somebody?  

MR. RICHARDS:  Okay.  Your Honor, this is 

Mr. Richards.  As a point of clarification for Mr. 

Hamilton, I don't think that what the Court has been 

alluding to or that you were asking about is that 

you're granting the fiduciary the authority to go in 

tomorrow and to find anyone who failed to get an 

occupancy agreement from him, who is exclusive -- 

been in exclusive possession of that property since 

before the Court's administration, since the Court's 

administration instead of just kicking them out 

without going through some sort of a process 

whether -- you know, through this Court.  What we're 

talking about -- 

THE COURT:  This Court or other 

appropriate -- 

MR. PARKER:  This Court doesn't even have 

jurisdiction (inaudible). 

THE COURT:  Well, whichever court has 

appropriate jurisdiction.  I agree with Mr. Richards' 

clarification.  

MR. RICHARDS:  Your Honor, what we were 

talking about is the instance where someone had a 
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lease agreement and they show up and they tell the 

police, Look, someone is on this property I have a 

lease agreement for.  They don't have a lease 

agreement.  They don't have anything that they claim 

that they have a right to be here.  I want you to 

enforce my lease rights and uphold these.  In fact, 

those are official, certified, verified orders that 

come with the appointor and the order of the Court. 

MR. HAMILTON:  (Inaudible) talking about 

commercial property that's being currently used, the 

granary for example.  Regardless of whether the 

granary is going to be considered personal or real 

property, it's being used by somebody else.  So if 

the special fiduciary gives a lease to somebody, does 

that person then -- are they allowed to come and 

remove grain and remove property and self-evict 

somebody?  

MR. RICHARDS:  (Inaudible). 

MR. HAMILTON:  (Inaudible). 

MR. PARKER:  (Inaudible) the fiduciary 

decides to give a lease to somebody to buy a personal 

vehicle, I don't think -- you know, that's what's 

being discussed here. 

THE COURT:  I disagree. 

MR. PARKER:  That is presumptively valid. 
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THE COURT:  I disagree because the UEP 

does not claim to own your personal vehicle. 

MR. PARKER:  (Inaudible) and then if he 

comes presumptively valid under the scenario that Mr. 

Richards is putting forward.  He simply says it and 

it becomes presumptively valid.  Because I'm saying 

that the personal property that we're talking about 

is not owned by the trust or by the fiduciary.  And 

broad ownership claim is being ignored.  

THE COURT:  No, it's not. 

MR. PARKER:  That's the objection that I 

have to what's happening. 

THE COURT:  I disagree.  

MR. SHIELDS:  (Inaudible) Shields.  I 

haven't said anything today.  But on behalf of the 

special fiduciary, we are not doing what Mr. Parker 

alleges we are doing.  What we are doing is leasing 

UEP property or allowing people to use that property.  

We are not asserting control over property that is 

not UEP.  And if we were, then that's when you bring 

that to your Honor to resolve that.  So this -- I 

think Mr. Parker's concerns are unfounded both in 

fact and in process.  There's a process that you can 

pursue.  What's going on right now is the fiduciary 

has no chance to enforce its right because the police 
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are siding with anybody who's contra-fiduciary.  

MR. PARKER:  And that isn't true either.  

He says he had a conflict at the granary and they 

refused to side with anybody.  It's a civil matter 

that goes (inaudible).  That's what we encountered at 

the granary last Tuesday.  

MR. RICHARDS:  Your Honor, this is Mr. 

Richards.  I think with your clarification that 

you've now provided us, I think that the police, the 

local government officials and the individuals who 

were represented here and otherwise received notice 

of your order are fully advised of the Court's intent 

and the Court's order.  And they'll act at their own 

risk and make their own decisions. 

THE COURT:  Mr. Richards -- 

MR. RICHARDS:  I don't think the Court 

needs to go further on that.  However, on these other 

issues, your Honor, with respect to disputes where 

people are claiming I have a prior interest or I have 

a personal interest, I think the Court is correct 

that there may need to be a process for addressing 

those separately.  I would recommend that the Court 

do what it's done in the past and give us, say, 30 

days in which -- for the parties to submit briefs to 

you, outlining recommendations for a process to 
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address both disputed issues.  I think we can do 

that.  

I expect that Mr. Okazaki and Mr. Parker 

will weigh in on that.  I would encourage them to 

call me, call Mr. Bodily, and call anyone else and 

talk about the proper process for doing that so that 

there was (inaudible).  And I would expect that 

irrespective of any intervention issues we'd probably 

submit some briefing to the Court, and the Court 

probably will review that.  And that would be my 

recommendation on that.  The only other question I 

have, Judge, and I'll shut up, is whether or not 

we're going to have a transcript of this proceeding 

or if the Court is going to have a folder, an order 

that issues this clarification in some other form.

THE COURT:  Mr. -- 

MR. HAMILTON:  Your Honor, if I may.  This 

is Blake Hamilton. 

THE COURT:  Yes, Mr. Hamilton. 

MR. HAMILTON:  I'm speaking on behalf of 

the cities here.  The police have been put in a very 

difficult situation.  They are not siding with one 

faction or the other.  They are -- they have been put 

in a difficult situation because the special 

fiduciary, for whatever reason, hasn't gone through 
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the process, the legal process.  And Mr. Richards 

keeps talking about that there needs to be a process 

put in.  Well, there is a legal process already, 

unlawful detainer action, abandonment statutes so 

that they -- that the special fiduciary has to go 

through that legal process before extinguishing 

rights. 

THE COURT:  Just a moment.  Let me make 

sure that we are all talking about the same thing.  

What I'm talking about right now is that 

where the special fiduciary has entered into an 

agreement as to a particular field, property, that 

those written agreements are to be enforced.  And the 

holder of those agreements and the beneficiary of 

those agreements has, at this point, documented 

superior right to anything.  

Now, if there are contests as to those 

rights and the right of the fiduciary to issue those 

agreements or to enter into those agreements, that's 

the -- you know, I'm going to have to think through 

how to create a process so that those concerns and 

those counter positions and other documentation can 

be presented to the Court and adjudicated.  And I'm 

going to need the assistance of counsel in -- in 

fashioning a proper process so that if there are 
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challenges to those agreements, then those can be 

properly documented and presented to the Court and 

addressed.  

So I -- I think we're at -- I think, 

Mr. Hamilton, your argument misses the point a bit.  

Because the -- you -- I agree with you that there are 

proper processes for unlawful detainer or for other 

processes when -- but what I am addressing here right 

now is as between someone that has a written 

agreement with a fiduciary and someone that does not 

and cannot and has not produced documentary evidence 

supporting their counter position where the special 

fiduciary has entered into an agreement and has the 

Court's authority to issue leases or agreements for 

use, occupancy agreement however denominated. 

MR. PARKER:  Of property that the trust 

owns. 

THE COURT:  The property that the trust 

owns, that is correct. 

MR. PARKER:  And if it doesn't own the 

property -- 

THE COURT:  Well, if there's a challenge 

to the property -- whether or not the -- the trust 

owns the property, then that needs to go through a 

process of discovery so that everybody can be 
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properly informed about the basis for the various 

claims, and there will have to be some kind of 

process for adjudicating that.  And as I said -- as 

you indicated, I'm going to have to think through how 

to do that in light of my prior rulings.  

MR. PARKER:  (Inaudible). 

THE COURT:  And so I'm going to have to do 

that.  I'm just not at a position right now to speak 

off the cuff about that.  

MR. PARKER:  But as Mr. Hamilton pointed 

out, there already is a process, your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Well -- 

MR. PARKER:  I mean that process is 

statutory. 

THE COURT:  If there are -- 

MR. RICHARDS:  Your Honor, I'm sorry.  I 

apologize for interrupting, but I -- this is Mr. 

Richards again.  

Mr. Parker is well aware and he actually, 

I think, helped create the precedent on this 

particular issue.  It's the Holm versus UEP case of 

the Arizona Court of Appeals just a few years back 

where I believe -- and Rod you can correct me if I'm 

wrong on this -- I believe you were involved in 

representing the trust, trying to evict people under 
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Arizona law from trust property.  The Arizona Court 

of Appeals held that in a case there where the 

property occupants were saying they had some sort of 

an equitable long-term interest in being on the 

property, the long-term detainer -- or the unlawful 

detainer in addition statute in Arizona was not 

appropriate, that had to be decided in a separate 

civil action.  

MR. PARKER:  Your Honor -- 

MR. RICHARDS:  You have the jurisdiction 

over the realms of this trust and have the 

jurisdiction to decide those sorts of issues.  I 

think it's totally correct that the Court should put 

in place some sort of a procedure.  And again I would 

propose a 30-day waiting schedule on that.  That 

would be my suggestion. 

MR. PARKER:  Okay.  Now, let me just say 

that you advised me to correct you if you were wrong.  

And you are wrong because there was another component 

of that decision, and that was that the trust could 

not evict the person, could not act -- attempt to 

usurp the rights of the occupants until it went 

through that process.  If that's -- that's what 

you're advocating is to do away with the process -- 

and that's exactly what the Holms case is -- and be 
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done. 

MR. RICHARDS:  Actually, Judge, I think 

I'm advocating for a process here.  But we're going 

to have to brief you on that further.  

THE COURT:  Okay.  

Mr. Richards, I would ask you to please 

draft a proposed order that -- because I'm not sure, 

as I said earlier, how to make my views any clearer 

than I already have tried to say them, than the way 

I've said them.  So -- but if I could ask you to 

reduce to writing and make and provide me a proposed 

order that in your view would make it clear that this 

Court fully backs the agreements negotiated by the 

special fiduciary and that those orders -- and that 

those agreements are based on this Court's 

supervision of the trust and that it is this Court's 

order that those agreements be given full recognition 

and enforced.  I would invite you to draft that 

proposed order, and Mr. Parker and Mr. Okazaki and 

Mr. -- I'm sorry, Mr. Hamilton or anyone else can 

then file any objections or concerns that they may 

have to the specific language that is proposed.  I 

think that that would be the most effective way of 

addressing and clarifying this Court's position with 

respect to the orders it has already issued and the 
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authority it has granted the special fiduciary.  

MR. RICHARDS:  Your Honor, if I can have 

until about next Tuesday to submit that. 

THE COURT:  That should be fine.  

Now, I heard you earlier addressing two 

separate issues in response to my introductory 

statements that I thought that this really needed to 

be addressed as an order to show cause hearing with 

proper support by way of affidavits, et cetera.  You 

had identified specific individuals, most in your -- 

in your -- in your report, most of those individuals 

tend to be in the police department.  And I'm sure 

that those can be identified, readily identified and 

can -- and to the extent that there are specific 

examples, specific individuals whose actions are, you 

know, alleged and with support from affidavits -- 

(Beep.)

THE COURT:  Whoops.  Who do we have that 

dropped out?  Have I lost somebody?  

MR. PARKER:  If we lost him, we wouldn't 

know. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Let me do -- let me do 

a roll call here.  Who do I have on the line?  

MR. RICHARDS:  Mr. Richards is here.

MR. PARKER:  (Inaudible).
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THE COURT:  I'm sorry?  

MR. PARKER:  Rod Parker is here.

MR. JEFF SHIELDS:  Rod Parker, after you, 

Jeff Shields.  

MR. OKAZAKI:  Ken is here.

THE COURT:  Okay.

MR. SAMPSON:  Chad Sampson (inaudible).

THE COURT:  Okay.

MR. LEAVITT:  Mike Leavitt still here.

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MR. HAMILTON:  Blake Hamilton still here. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MR. BODILY:  Ken Bodily still here. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MR. PARKER:  Is Bill still there?

MR. RICHARDS:  Yes.  

THE COURT:  Is Mr. Leavitt on?  

MR. LEAVITT:  Yes, I'm still here. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Is Mr. Hoole?  

MR. PARKER:  That's who's lost us. 

MR. HAMILTON:  That's who's lost, Judge. 

MR. JEFF SHIELDS:  How about Mark

Callister?  Are you still on, Mark?  

THE COURT:  Is Mr. Callister on?  

Is Mr. Shields -- Zach Shields on?  
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MR. JEFF SHIELDS:  Okay.  We lost 

Roger Hoole, Zach and Mark is all.  

THE COURT:  And is Jeff on?  Jeff Shields?  

MR. JEFF SHIELDS:  Jeff Shields is still 

on.

THE COURT:  Okay.  So we've lost Mark 

Callister, Zach, and Mr. Hoole.  

Let's see, can one of you try to get them 

back on because we can't pick them up.  Oh, no, we're 

not going to be able to do that.  

Hold on a second. 

THE CLERK:  If they call for you -- 

THE COURT:  Uh-huh (affirmative).

THE CLERK:  -- they will be added.  They 

will just automatically will be added in. 

THE COURT:  Oh, if -- 

THE CLERK:  If Mr. Hoole -- 

THE COURT:  If one of these individuals 

then conferences in the other one, they will be 

automatically added.  

Okay.  That's someone that knows more 

about this system than I do is telling me that if one 

of you will contact Mr. Zach Shields, Mr. Mark 

Callister and Mr. Roger Hoole, then they will be 

added to the conference.  I just can't do it.  
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MR. JEFF SHIELDS:  This is Jeff Shields.  

I would do it, except I'm up in the mountains and 

I've got a -- I've got a phone that I had to go 

through to answer to get to this.  There's no way I 

could join anybody on it.  

THE COURT:  Okay.  Mr. Bodily, can you do 

that?

MR. BODILY:  Yeah.  I mean I've already 

got three people on. 

THE COURT:  Oh, do you?  

Okay.  Let's see, can anybody else that's 

on a separate call?  

MR. LEAVITT:  I'm on a -- this is 

Mike Leavitt.  I'm on a separate call.  I can bring 

at least one other person in.  

MR. BODILY:  I can try another.  If you 

want to give me -- I can try.  I just don't want to 

lose -- 

THE COURT:  Right.  Well, I don't want to 

lose you either.  How many do you have on your line, 

Mr. Bodily?  

MR. SAMPSON:  Your Honor, this is 

Chad Sampson.  I think I could try and bring in Zach 

and Mark. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  
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MR. SAMPSON:  Mr. Callister and Mr. 

Shields.  

Jeff, do you have their number directly? 

MR. JEFF SHIELDS:  Yes.  Zach is 

801-530-7356.  

MR. SAMPSON:  Okay.  

MR. JEFF SHIELDS:  I think they were in a 

conference in his office.  So call him, and I think 

that will work.

MR. SAMPSON:  We'll go ahead and call 

them -- 

THE COURT:  And just a moment.  

Mr. Leavitt, could you try to bring in 

Mr. Hoole?  

MR. LEAVITT:  Yes.  Do you have his 

number, your Honor?  

THE COURT:  801-272-7556. 

MR. LEAVITT:  272-7556.  Okay.  

THE COURT:  801.  Okay.

I guess I'll hold off until everybody is 

on. 

MR. SAMPSON:  Your Honor, this is 

Mr. Sampson.  I think they're putting us on hold to 

get the other people.   

THE COURT:  Okay.  All right.  Thank you.
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MR. SAMPSON:  This is Chad Sampson.  Is -- 

is Zach or Mark on the line?

THE COURT:  It doesn't sound like it.

MR. SAMPSON:  All right.  I apologize, 

your Honor, we'll try this again.

THE COURT:  Okay.  Thank you.

MR. LEAVITT:  And, your Honor -- 

THE COURT:  Yes.  

MR. LEAVITT:  -- this is Mike Leavitt.  

Roger, are you there?  

MR. HOOLE:  Yes.  Your Honor, I apologize.  

I somehow got dropped and didn't know how to rejoin. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Well, hopefully we've 

got you back on and will keep you on.  

MR. JEFF SHIELDS:  Your Honor, this is 

Jeff Shields.  If we cannot get Mark Callister and 

Zach Shields, I can continue to represent the 

fiduciary through the remainder of this call without 

them. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MR. JEFF SHIELDS:  As long as my phone 

holds out. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MR. PARKER:  Well, tell us if you get cut 

off then.  



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

In the matter of UEP Trust * July 22, 2010 

CITICOURT, LLC
801.532.3441

48

MR. JEFF SHIELDS:  If you don't hear my 

chuckle, then that means I'm off. 

THE COURT:  All right.  

Are we back on?  

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Apparently not. 

THE COURT:  Apparently not, okay.  

MR. LEAVITT:  Your Honor, this is Mike 

Leavitt.  While we're waiting -- 

THE COURT:  Yes, sir.  

MR. LEAVITT:  -- I just wanted to check 

since we did have some discussion about matters that 

have been submitted to the Court.  I represent 

Commercial Service of Perry.  We had two motions that 

we sent binders to the Court on about a month ago.  I 

just wanted to make sure the Court has those. 

THE COURT:  Yes, we do have those.  

MR. LEAVITT:  Okay.  

THE COURT:  Okay.  The two that we have -- 

I will say that my clerk is telling me that the ones 

that we have are the ones that Mr. Leavitt just 

alluded to, and we have Mr. Richards' other binder.

But I don't recall seeing Mr. Parker's, 

and my clerk does not recall seeing Mr. Parker's. 

MR. PARKER:  We'll check on that, your 

Honor. 
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THE COURT:  Okay.  

MR. SAMPSON:  Your Honor, are you still 

there?  

THE COURT:  I am.

MR. SAMPSON:  Okay.  We're trying to work 

it out with this 1950s phone system we've got here in 

our office.  If you'll bear with us for one more 

moment. 

THE COURT:  Not a problem.  

MR. SAMPSON:  Hello, your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Yes. 

MR. SAMPSON:  Are you there?  

THE COURT:  I am.  Well, obviously.  

Mr. Shields, Mr. Callister, are you there?

MR. CALLISTER:  Yes.

MR. ZACH SHIELDS:  Sorry, your Honor, we 

were dropped off and making -- leaving voicemails all 

over the place.  

MR. SAMPSON:  I want serious recognition 

for getting that accomplished. 

THE COURT:  You got it.  

Okay.  Now, let me -- 

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  (Inaudible) do you 

want me to get the (inaudible)?  

THE COURT:  Yes, please.  
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  I'm back.  I'm 

here.

MR. RICHARDS:  Your Honor, this is 

Mr. Richards.  I think you left off explaining that 

(inaudible) individuals whose actions are alleged who 

can be alleged now with affidavits to have violated 

the Court's orders, and I think that's where you 

left. 

THE COURT:  Right.  And that should be 

brought, you know, consistent with our contempt 

statute by order to show cause with supporting 

affidavits and then the parties will need to be 

served -- not the parties, but the individuals will 

need to be served because as you correctly stated, 

whether or not they are parties to the case or they 

do come within the jurisdiction of the Court to the 

extent that they have knowledge of the Court's 

orders.  So that -- that will need to be done.  

The second set of -- the second group, as 

I understood you, were actions taken by individuals 

or groups of individuals who at this time cannot be 

directly identified for purposes of an order to show 

cause but that for whom you are requesting that 

discovery be provided, be engaged in so that there 

could be further determination whether or not those 
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individuals need to be brought before the Court.  If 

I -- is that correct?  Is that -- 

MR. RICHARDS:  Yes, your Honor. 

THE COURT:  -- how I understood you?  

And the -- what I'm just looking at here 

is I thought we had -- I'm looking at my order of 

March, I think it was -- oh, wait, I've changed.  

Okay.  Hold on a second, of March 18.  

Mr. Parker, I need to address one 

question -- one issue.  You had indicated that there 

was a motion to intervene that was still pending, and 

I think I had addressed that issue in my March 18 

ruling when I indicate -- when I said that there 

were -- that I would rule on the motion to intervene 

(inaudible) the stay of the corporation or the 

presiding -- or the president would seek relief from 

the stay order.  I don't know if you have sought that 

or not.  I have -- that has not come to my attention.  

So -- but I believe to the extent that 

that's pending, it may very well be because the 

estate and the corporation of the president have not 

acted to seek relief from the stay order as was 

directed, as they were directed to do under my March 

18 -- 

MR. PARKER:  The motion -- the motion 
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you're -- excuse me, we filed that motion on April 

8th. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  That -- and that's the 

one that you say -- 

MR. PARKER:  The motion we asked the court 

to lift the stay for the purpose of deciding the -- 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. PARKER:  -- motion to intervene. 

THE COURT:  I have not seen that.  

MR. PARKER:  (Inaudible).

THE COURT:  Did you provide that as I have 

requested through a separate binder of courtesy 

copies that supported that?  

Because I'm sure that what happened is 

once it hit the bowels of this building, it got 

filed.  The file, as you know, is voluminous.  Many, 

many people have their hands on it, in it, through 

it.  They, you know -- I don't have control of the 

file. 

MR. PARKER:  I wish I knew the answer to 

that while I'm sitting here, your Honor.  I will 

follow up when we get off the phone -- 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. PARKER:  -- and ask whether we did 

that or not.  I thought we had.  I remember at least 
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a conversation about it.  But if we didn't, I 

apologize and will get it done. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MR. PARKER:  It sounds like we didn't or 

you'd have it.  So -- 

THE COURT:  Well, I believe I would have 

had -- if it had been clearly marked as courtesy 

copies for the court to -- you know, to address a 

pending issue, I would have -- I believe I would have 

received that and my clerk would have received that. 

MR. PARKER:  Yeah.  Well, we'll follow up.

THE COURT:  Okay.

MR. PARKER:  And let you know one way or 

another. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  And again -- 

MR. PARKER:  What we'll do is we'll send 

another set over.  It won't do any good to tell you 

if we did it before. 

THE COURT:  Whatever it is, just -- 

MR. PARKER:  I did come over there one 

time not too long ago and found a bunch of stuff.  It 

was a very big coincidence.  I was looking for some 

information in one case, and they pulled it out and 

it was in a box and there was also a bunch of stuff 

from a totally different, unrelated case which was 
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also mine with it. 

THE COURT:  Oh, my gosh. 

MR. PARKER:  Which had been misfiled.  So, 

you know, things happen. 

THE COURT:  Yeah.  Anyway, and I do 

apologize for that.  

This is -- I don't know that any of us 

have ever had a case that has over 57 volumes.  I 

don't even know at this point how many volumes we 

actually have left.  

MR. PARKER:  We're up for the world 

record.  

THE COURT:  We believe you are.  We're 

going to have to contact Guinness.  

But I'm just trying to quickly look 

through my -- that order with respect to the 

fiduciary.  Because my recollection is that I had put 

something in there that also granted the Arizona AG's 

motion, but I'm -- I can't find it exactly right now.  

So if the Arizona AG is representing to me that they 

never got something that they viewed as a specific 

order, I will go back and double-check on that. 

MR. RICHARDS:  Yeah, your Honor, this is 

Mr. Richards.  We will proffer that we looked and we 

didn't find anything. 
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THE COURT:  Okay.  

MR. RICHARDS:  (Inaudible). 

THE COURT:  Okay.  I will -- there was 

something else that was referenced in Mr. Richards' 

report, and maybe Mr. Richards and Mr. Hamilton can 

address that for me.  

(Beep.) 

THE COURT:  Oh, boy.  We lost somebody 

again.  Who did we lose now?  Roll call.  

MR. PARKER:  I assume we're missing the 

four, Callister -- 

THE COURT:  I'm sorry?  

MR. RICHARDS:  Mr. Richards is still here.  

Chad, are you still there?  

MR. SAMPSON:  Yes.

MR. JEFF SHIELDS:  Jeff Shields is still 

here.  

MR. HOOLE:  Roger Hoole is still here.

MR. LEAVITT:  Mike Leavitt's still here.

MR. ZACH SHIELDS:  Zach Shields and Mark 

Callister are still here.  

THE COURT:  Okay.

MR. PARKER:  Rod Parker is still here.  

Is Ken still there?  

MR. OKAZAKI:  Yeah, I'm here.  
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MR. HAMILTON:  Blake Hamilton is still 

here. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MR. RICHARDS:  I think we have everyone. 

THE COURT:  I think we do have everybody.  

Okay.  Don't scare me like that, guys.  

Back to -- I've lost my train of thought.

Mr. Richards, there has been an indication 

that -- well, more than an indication.  You had 

provided as an attachment to -- or as an exhibit to 

your report, submissions requests made to the cities, 

I guess it was, for -- or the police department, I'm 

not sure who it were, for GRAMA records, GRAMA 

protected records.  And there have been apparently 

repeated requests and that had to be mirrored in the 

forms of the -- of the department.  I guess it was 

the police department.  

What has been -- what is the status of 

that?  Have you been provided those records?  

MR. RICHARDS:  Your Honor, let me explain 

that, first of all, Mr. Hamilton's office has not 

been the ones responding to it.  It's that other firm 

that the cities have obtained in Phoenix.  So we're 

working with a different counsel on that. 

THE COURT:  Oh, okay. 
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MR. RICHARDS:  Your Honor, when I left 

town the end of last week, we were being promised 

reports regarding the (inaudible) house incident and 

regarding the May 24th incident at the Berrymore Farm 

by this week.  

I did note that I have some message in -- 

I've been out of the office this week -- I got a 

message and it looks like we've been sent something 

from counsel, which I'm presuming is the records from 

those two incidents.  As of the time I left on 

Friday, we had not received any requested reports for 

2008, 2009, or 2010.  And I believe what's probably 

come over this week is the small segment of the most 

recent incidents, but I'd have to check that, your 

Honor.  

And Mr. Sampson, I don't know if you're 

aware of what we've received this week. 

MR. SAMPSON:  No, Bill, I apologize.  

Nobody has talked to me about it. 

MR. HAMILTON:  Your Honor, if I may, this 

is Blake Hamilton here.  

First of all, when I made my objection of 

the fact that we were going to file a response to Mr. 

Richards, we were going to address this exact issue.  

I have been in contact with the firm that he's 
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talking about.  They have been retained as Colorado 

City's city attorney, and they were responding to 

this records request.  And it is completely -- as 

represented by Mr. Richards in his brief or his 

request for this status conference -- it is 

completely one-sided.  They have properly responded 

and they have actually -- they have actually 

submitted a GRAMA request themselves, the city, 

Colorado City in January that the State of Arizona 

hasn't properly responded to.  

Furthermore, the statute provides the 

mechanism for following up on this.  This is not the 

proper court to do so.

THE COURT:  I was merely inquiring because 

that had been an issue that had been raised in this 

motion.  Whether that's properly an issue for me or 

not, I haven't really stopped to think about it.  

MR. RICHARDS:  Your Honor, this is 

Mr. Richards.  I think that we could certainly 

short-circuit things, if we're not getting all the 

information.  And again, I don't want to represent 

that we haven't been given more than I think we have.  

Like I said, I've been out of the office and I know 

something has come in.  But if it hasn't been 

complete, certainly if you'll grant discovery, our 
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intent would be to subpoena for those records, which 

would, you know, come with the Court's order that 

they be produced.  So I thought we could address it 

that way as well.  

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MR. HAMILTON:  Your Honor, if I may just 

really quickly there, you said this motion.  If this 

is a motion, then we still have the opportunity to 

respond.  And our time to respond would be next week. 

THE COURT:  No, I'm sorry.  If said 

motion, I misspoke.  

What I have in front of me is an emergency 

report from the Arizona AG's office and a request for 

an expedited status conference.  That's what this 

telephonic conference is.  

There was no motion made in that status 

report about anything regarding those records.  It 

was -- he was merely informing me about what those -- 

from his perspective what had or had not been 

produced and what had or had not occurred.  Now -- 

MR. HAMILTON:  Your Honor, we wanted to 

respond. 

THE COURT:  And you still can.  

You know, Mr. Richards requested a status 

conference.  It's not at all unusual, and it's 
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consistent with my practice that when, you know, a 

party in this case, clearly the attorney general is, 

makes a request for a status conference -- not just 

in this case but in any case that I -- that is 

assigned to me -- when a party requests a status 

conference, it is my practice to schedule those. 

MR. HAMILTON:  And I appreciate that, your 

Honor.  But again, we did not know that this phone 

conference is where we were going to address these. 

MR. RICHARDS:  Your Honor, this is 

Mr. Richards.  I don't think we need to address the 

public (inaudible) here.  

THE COURT:  I am not addressing.  I merely 

was -- 

MR. RICHARDS:  And let me make that clear 

that we weren't asking the Court for a (inaudible) on 

a public records request. 

THE COURT:  No.  And I don't believe -- I 

didn't believe you did.  I couldn't see any request 

of relief.  In connection with that I merely saw it 

as informational.  

And if the city has a different position, 

it certainly is welcome to supplement the record with 

its position on that matter.  But that is not an 

issue that is presently -- it has not been brought 
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before me for any kind of relief. 

MR. HAMILTON:  Fair enough.  

THE COURT:  So where do we go from here?  

Mr. Richards, you are going to -- 

MR. RICHARDS:  With respect to -- and I'm 

assuming you're going to rule on our discovery 

request.  And obviously that would potentially 

address the issues regarding folks who have not -- 

THE COURT:  Who were not -- 

MR. RICHARDS:  -- we believe are in 

violation with the Court's orders.  But we really 

don't know the specific identification.  We can find 

those through discovery.  

The other things I think we talked about 

were briefing the Court on a process for those 

disputing, claiming to have a superior right to 

somebody that the fiduciary had put into the 

property, to bring that dispute before the Court, or 

claiming some sort of an interest above and beyond 

the trust interest or separate from the trust 

interest in property, to bring those before the 

Court.  

I would suggest a 30-day briefing 

schedule, your Honor, because I would like to keep 

things moving.  I think it's in everyone's interest 
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given the contention in the community to do that.  

I think that beyond that in the order 

you've already directed me to submit, I think that 

covers everything we talked about. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  And I think 30 days 

should give everyone ample time to provide their 

perspectives on this adjusted process for addressing 

that.  So I will accept that recommendation.  And if 

you could also build that into the order. 

MR. RICHARDS:  Will do, Judge. 

THE COURT:  And then -- and I really do 

welcome and -- 

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Your Honor, I'm 

sorry.  We would like to comment on that but our 

schedules are just horrible for August.  We were 

hoping maybe 45 days. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  45 days works.  I know 

that August is -- a lot people are -- also still have 

vacation plans or whatever.  I think, Mr. Richards, I 

assume that you're not objecting, but 45 -- 

MR. RICHARDS:  That's fine. 

THE COURT:  An extra two weeks does not 

strike me as undue delay on that. 

MR. RICHARDS:  No.  Sure. 

THE COURT:  So everyone will have -- so 
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there will be 45 days for any suggestive process to 

be brought by any and all interested. 

MR. BODILY:  Your Honor, this is 

Tim Bodily again.  And I know this really -- you 

can't address or at least rule on this right now.  

But obviously there is the issue of the silos pending 

in the Fifth Judicial District, Washington County. 

THE COURT:  I will tell you, I'm not sure 

about the silo -- I will tell you I received a 

conference call from the judge assigned the TRO.  Is 

this -- are we dealing with this same issue or the 

different issue?  

MR. BODILY:  Judge Shumate?  

THE COURT:  Yes.  

MR. BODILY:  Judge Walton is -- 

THE COURT:  Judge Walton is the assigned 

judge.  I received a call from Judge Walton.  And I 

was under the impression -- but I don't know if 

that's dealing with the silos or with something else.

MR. BODILY:  That's the silos.  

THE COURT:  Okay.

MR. BODILY:  And obviously it would appear 

to me that this order -- I don't know if you're going 

to set a date for the order to show cause that will 

be brought, I assume, by the fiduciary and other 
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parties.  But obviously I think some of the factual 

issues will overlap there and then with this briefing 

schedule for 45 days, it may be wrapped up in that 

too.  So I don't know what your thought process is, 

since it is an interim, quasi interim action, this 

trust matter, that the property issue of the silos 

that are attached to the real property should be 

addressed by you.  

Certainly somebody is going to have to 

determine whether or not the FLDS (inaudible) grain 

violated your previous injunctive orders. 

THE COURT:  Right.  And that was one of 

the things -- one of the issues that Judge Walton 

raised to me.  And that was -- and basically the 

communication was that the matter had been set for a 

hearing and that -- when was that hearing scheduled 

for, Mr. Parker?  

MR. PARKER:  Tuesday at two o'clock. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  But the sum and 

substance of the communication from Judge Walton was 

that his position was that this case -- that that 

case really should be brought to this Court or 

transferred to this Court, that issue should be 

transferred to this Court for resolution.  

And I -- I agree, you know, in principle.  
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I didn't know the specifics, and we did not go into 

any of the specifics.  He just informed me that that 

was his -- his present position and that he would 

address it I guess in the court or I guess just Judge 

Shumate would raise that issue.  So that's all I know 

about that. 

MR. PARKER:  Well -- 

THE COURT:  I don't know what other steps 

may be taken by Judge Shumate and Judge Walton in the 

interim.  But that was -- and he just wanted to 

consult with me whether I thought that that matter 

should be transferred here or retained there.  And 

that was -- 

MR. PARKER:  Sorry, your Honor, this is 

Rod.  I think that we -- I guess what we need to do 

is move forward with Judge Walton so he -- then he 

can address that issue. 

THE COURT:  Absolutely.  I'm not -- I'm 

not presuming to speak for Judge Walton.  

I'm just giving, as a disclosure that we 

did have a judge-to-judge communication on the 

advisability of where a case should be based and 

handled.  That's all.

MR. PARKER:  Yeah, that's fine.  I -- and 

we had a self-help situation going on down there and 
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did what we could to try and get it resolved.  And 

we'll deal with -- we'll talk to Judge Walton and 

find out what he wants to do. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MR. RICHARDS:  And this -- 

THE COURT:  Go ahead. 

MR. RICHARDS:  Your Honor, (inaudible) 

this time intervening in that case so I guess we can 

discuss that at the hearing. 

THE COURT:  Correct.  Yeah, I think that's 

the appropriate thing and you'll discuss it at that 

hearing.  And then the judge down there will notify 

me if he's transferring the case to me or, you know, 

after hearing further from the various sides.  

MR. RICHARDS:  Okay.  

THE COURT:  In fact, I guess one question 

I have, and I think Mr. Bodily alluded to it, and 

that is the -- there are timing pressures because of 

what appear to be escalations and potential risk of 

things getting out of hand in the community.  That 

has to be weighed against adequate time to conduct 

whatever necessary discovery may be needed to 

address, you know, those issues substantively.  

And I'm not going to at this point give 

you an order to show cause date because -- for 
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various reasons, not the least of which is that right 

now I don't have a formal motion for an order to show 

cause that is properly supported by affidavit.  So 

that will have to be brought to me before I'm going 

to determine whether or not -- you know, about when 

and for how long to set the matter for a hearing.  

So in the interim, if you have specific 

suggestions, Mr. Bodily, about how matters ought to 

be sequenced, I would welcome that as well as I would 

welcome that -- those suggestions from anyone that is 

on this call.  And you can include that as a part 

of -- as a separate section of the briefing that 

we -- that I -- that has been suggested and I've 

agreed to be done within 45 days.  

But it does strike me that there may need 

to be some portion -- some kind of discovery in order 

to determine what further actions may need to -- may 

need to be -- whether they're orders to show cause, 

whether substantive disputes result through some 

process where conflicting claims are resolved.  But 

that will all be suggested.  

I will be looking for your suggestions in 

the briefing that is going to be submitted to me.  

MR. PARKER:  Would -- Judge, it's Rod 

Parker.  
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Would you summarize again what exactly 

you're expecting in this briefing in four to five 

days?  I'm sorry.  I've kind of lost track, we've 

talked about so many things. 

THE COURT:  And we are.  The briefing that 

Mr. Richards suggested was that the -- that all 

interested individuals and parties and -- be able to 

suggest a process for presenting conflicting claims 

or claims that purport to predate or to challenge 

ownership of the UEP's ownership of certain assets.  

And how that process -- how those claims should be 

presented and considered by the Court and how to do 

that in light of my prior rulings in terms of 

people's standing or lack thereof.  I believe that 

that was the suggestion that Mr. Richards had made.  

That was what I thought it was asking for.  

Mr. Richards, you can clarify what you 

were suggesting?  

MR. RICHARDS:  Your Honor, I think that 

captures it.

THE COURT:  Okay.  So does that help, Mr. 

Parker?  

MR. PARKER:  That's exactly what I needed.  

Thank you.

THE COURT:  Okay. 
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MR. OKAZAKI:  This is Ken Okazaki, just a 

question. 

THE COURT:  Yes, Mr. Okazaki. 

MR. OKAZAKI:  Mark Callister, you said 

that you're intervening.  I got communications from 

people at Ray, Quinney that said they are 

intervening, so.  

MR. CALLISTER:  Yeah, the trust is 

intervening, Ken.  Ray, Quinney is going to appear in 

that case and file a motion to intervene and respond. 

MR. OKAZAKI:  Okay.  I just didn't know 

who was where.  

MR. CALLISTER:  Yeah.

MR. OKAZAKI:  And let me get this 

straight, you're going to -- the trust is going to 

intervene in this case.  It's a $500-a-year lease; is 

that right?  

MR. CALLISTER:  Yeah, that's right.  

Because Mr. Stubbs had his name removed from the 

silos and it's just out sitting in the road, from my 

understanding.  And our opposition is that that was 

improper.  He has a lease, and this is just an 

example of how the leases have not been respected 

down there.  So we think it's worthy of getting 

resolved. 
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THE COURT:  Yeah.  

MR. RICHARDS:  Your Honor, if I could -- 

this is Mr. Richards.  If I could clarify one thing.  

I did go back and look over my notes for the 

direction you gave me on the order.  And I think you 

mentioned in your clarification to Mr. Parker 

ownership disputes.  I also have listed here from 

your earlier comments disputes over the right to use 

trust property. 

THE COURT:  Correct.  Right.  So there can 

be a determination, a substantive determination of 

who has rights to use, possess and act upon trust 

property.  And I think that where there are claims 

that the fiduciary is attempting to -- you know, has 

leased or entered into agreements regarding property 

that is claimed not to be owned by the trust, there 

needs to be a process for adjudicating that.  

MR. JEFF SHIELDS:  This is Jeff Shields.  

I think the fiduciary would welcome this procedure, 

thank you.  

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MR. OKAZAKI:  May I -- this is 

Ken Okazaki.  

Jeff, forgive me if I've missed this, but 

does a fiduciary have the inventory of each and 
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everything that he claims the trust owns?  

MR. JEFF SHIELDS:  By inventory, I don't 

know what you mean by that but -- 

MR. OKAZAKI:  Well, like a schedule or 

something that says, okay, I own -- the trust owns 

this land, the trust owns this piece of equipment, 

the trust owns -- you know, because maybe we ought to 

start there with that because if there -- do you know 

if that exists?  Let's start with that question.

MR. JEFF SHIELDS:  I know the trust has 

got title reports showing title to real property, and 

I think they served the trust with (inaudible) a 

picture or building or improvement on there as UEP 

property.  

MR. OKAZAKI:  Okay.  You think it does or 

that's what it does?  

MR. JEFF SHIELDS:  Well, I think it does 

and I think -- to my knowledge, it is what it is. 

MR. OKAZAKI:  Thanks.  And then just a 

clarification.  On this discovery issue that 

Mr. Richards has talked about, when will -- assuming 

that that's granted, when do we get to do discovery?  

I guess that's the question.  

THE COURT:  Sir?  

MR. OKAZAKI:  Do our clients that Rod 
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Parker and I represent get to do discovery, or is 

that just Mr. Richards and everybody else that gets 

to do discovery?  

THE COURT:  I believe that -- well, it's 

never clear to me exactly who you represent, with all 

due respect.  Because on a number of -- as to a 

number of those individuals, I've already made some 

rulings about their -- you know, not being parties in 

this action and not having a right to intervene.  As 

to others, that issue may very well be decided 

differently.  And that is apparently pending 

determination.  And as soon as I receive the 

materials from Mr. Parker, that pending matter will 

be addressed.  But that's part of the process.  

That's part of what I think should be addressed in 

the suggested process is -- and clearly, it sounds to 

me that certain individuals who may not have 

standing, as this Court has defined it, may be 

asserting rights to property or ownership of property 

that the trust is also asserting.  And so that, I 

think, needs to be addressed in terms of what 

opportunities and how that -- those rights, including 

discovery about, you know, whatever that substantive 

issue and dispute is, you know, what the scope of 

that should be and who should exercise that.  
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Part of that may go away once I've had the 

opportunity to rule on the outstanding motions to 

intervene because that will then clarify if there are 

additional parties that can conduct discovery.  And 

so I don't want to get ahead of myself.  

MR. JEFF SHIELDS:  Your Honor, this is 

Jeff Shields again.  

And it may be clarifying, Ken, your 

question about what is the non-trust property.  Part 

of the problem the fiduciary has is that the former 

trustees have failed to give him any information 

whatsoever.  So part of the discovery process may 

help answer your question, Ken, you know, what is and 

is not property. 

THE COURT:  That's correct.  

MR. JEFF SHIELDS:  (Inaudible) 

automatically helpful. 

THE COURT:  One of the outstanding orders 

of this Court from as early as 2005 or six was that 

the former trustees were to provide schedules, 

information, you know, all of that.  And those were 

never provided.  And so part of that discovery that 

needs to be done I think fairly falls within that.  

MR. JEFF SHIELDS:  My question was -- 

MR. PARKER:  You did previously rule on 
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that. 

THE COURT:  Oh, yeah, that's been an 

outstanding court order for -- 

MR. PARKER:  You entered some -- you had 

something to say about that in the March 18th order. 

MR. OKAZAKI:  But my question -- this is 

Ken again, your Honor -- my question to Jeff was 

if -- you know, if the fiduciary had a list of what 

he claimed, you know, apart from certain parcels of 

real estate.  

MR. JEFF SHIELDS:  I think I understand. 

THE COURT:  Well, I would -- I would 

suggest -- I won't pretend to speak for nor do I 

think it's appropriate for me to speak for Mr. 

Shields or for the fiduciary at this point on that 

issue.  But I will say that it's part of a 

chicken-and-egg issue.  There have been problems with 

shifting, you know -- and this is not specifically 

appropriate -- but shifting people from one house to 

another with doing various things that in some ways 

have at least arguably defeated efforts by the 

fiduciary to clarify what -- what property exists, 

what is owned, what isn't owned.  I think it's fair 

to say that that information has not been readily 

forthcoming from the community generally, from 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

In the matter of UEP Trust * July 22, 2010 

CITICOURT, LLC
801.532.3441

75

members of the community generally or from anyone 

else.  And so absent the -- any disclosure or 

compliance with my orders by the former trustees, who 

presumably were in the best position to have 

assembled that information and given the at least 

allegations by the fiduciary of substantial lack of 

cooperation in his efforts to ascertain those things, 

one concern would be that if the fiduciary provides a 

list of things that he's identified to date that -- 

unless it's clearly understood that further discovery 

might reveal other assets -- there might be a 

tendency to claim that is the sum and extent of all 

the fiduciary can claim to oversee.  And I'm not sure 

at this point I'm willing to concede that point as 

the ultimate administrator of the -- you know, the 

court being the ultimate administrator of the trust.

So I don't know at this point all that I 

am administering through this official fiduciary.  

MR. JEFF SHIELDS:  Your Honor, Jeff 

Shields here.  I think that's where discovery may be 

helpful.  I think that's a good thing to do, and I 

think we appreciate the opportunity to have both the 

discovery and the procedure to sort out any claims 

that are conflicting in terms of the trust and 

others.  
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THE COURT:  Okay.  

MR. RICHARDS:  Your Honor, this is Mr. 

Richards.  

There's one other I guess sticky aspect of 

all of that is -- what you're talking about now, and 

that is that the Colorado City is currently 

criminally prosecuting Mr. Wisan and others for 

alleged trespass on trust property, obviously 

creating a significant disincentive for him or 

representatives of him to go and look at trust 

property to see if it's being used, to see what's on 

there, see if it's been abandoned and all those sorts 

of things.  I assume it may be helpful -- I'll leave 

it up to Mr. Shields -- for the Court to simply 

reemphasize what I always understood was its standing 

order and that is as a person authorized by the court 

to manage the trust property, Mr. Wisan and his 

representatives do have authorization to take 

reasonable steps to enter trust properties to see if 

people are residing there, to check on the status of 

the fixtures, et cetera, on those properties.  So 

that that they don't need to worry about the police 

running out and saying they're going to cite them and 

charge them again for criminal trespass if they're 

simply trying to follow up on Mr. Okazaki's 
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questions.  

MR. OKAZAKI:  Well, wait a second.  They 

have to act under the -- are you asking that if they 

violate the law that that's okay?  

THE COURT:  Well, I guess that question 

whether they've violated the law is a matter to be 

determined. 

MR. RICHARDS:  Right. 

MR. OKAZAKI:  There's been one conviction 

already. 

THE COURT:  Well -- 

MR. RICHARDS:  And, your Honor, that's not 

my suggestion.  

In fact what I would like and if I could 

hear from the city, is if the police would actually 

cooperate with the fiduciary to ensure the fiduciary 

representatives are not doing something that they 

consider to be illegal in any way but also help them 

keep the peace if in fact the fiduciary 

representatives are out there checking on property.  

MR. PARKER:  What are you asking for, 

Bill?  I mean this is an ongoing criminal prosecution 

right now, and there's already been one conviction.  

I don't -- I don't quite understand.  

MR. JEFF SHIELDS:  I think what he's 
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asking -- 

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  (Inaudible) would 

support this, your Honor.  There is abandoned 

property where as you know people are moving in and 

out of property.  There are occasions where 

properties have been left unattended for weeks and 

months at a time.  What the fiduciary is trying to 

do, pursuant to his court order to preserve and 

protect property is to find out who's where.  So far 

in spite of numerous requests, we still don't know 

who's living where.  People are changing.  And so 

part of the fiduciary duty is to find out where the 

property is leased, when he finds abandoned 

properties he tries to get control of it.  He's been 

cited criminally for trying to do his duty as a 

fiduciary.  

MR. PARKER:  That's absolutely not true.  

Not true.  

MR. RICHARDS:   Yeah, Mr. Richards.  If I 

may make a suggestion, let me just explain.  I'm 

talking about going forward.  Mr. Okazaki has pointed 

out that he believes there's a problem with not 

knowing what all is the property within the trust.  

And my suggestion is there -- 

MR. PARKER:  Well --
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MR. OKAZAKI:  I -- 

THE COURT:  Just a minute.  Can we not 

interrupt each other?  Mr. Richards, you've got the 

floor and then Mr. Okazaki or Mr. Parker can respond.  

MR. RICHARDS:  I'm sorry, Judge.  And, 

Ken, if I misunderstood you, I apologize.  My 

understanding was you were asking if the fiduciary 

had a list of all the property they considered to be 

property of the trust.  Because of the fluid nature 

of property, that there are people moving in and out, 

that -- in fact in this case, and I have seen at 

least one police record from I think 2006 or so, 

2007, where someone had actually moved a building off 

of trust property.  And that was investigated by the 

police.  

Because of those situations in order to 

pin these things down, it seems to me reasonable that 

the court's representative would have to go out and 

look at the property sometimes.  It seems to me an 

incredible and (inaudible) duty to do that work if 

what you're afraid of is to even show up and say, no, 

you're criminal trespassing.  We're going to cite you 

for that.  And my suggestion was if that's something 

the fiduciary feels they need to do, that the -- I 

guess I'm not asking for the Court to do anything,.
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I'm asking whether or not the city would 

cooperate in ensuring that it communicates fully with 

the fiduciary and understands what they're doing so 

that they don't have that sort of a breakdown in the 

future and the thing can proceed as expeditiously 

with as little -- you know, the least disruption to 

the local community as possible. 

MR. OKAZAKI:  Well, this is Ken.  

Let me respond to that.  Occupancy and 

ownership are two different things.  People moving in 

and out, that doesn't have -- my question was if they 

had an inventory of the property they claimed the UEP 

owns, not who's occupying.  People moving in and out, 

that doesn't -- that's an occupancy issue.  

Presently it sounded like what you were 

asking for is the Court to order that these guys 

again have current (inaudible) to do whatever they 

want so that I don't even know.  It seems like 

there's one condition, there's two trials pending.  

And the condition was based not on -- it was a trial.  

And so it was in a court of law that made that 

determination that a law was violated.  And it wasn't 

appealed so that conviction stands.  

So when you bring up these issues, I'm 

just confused as to what you want this Court to do.  
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Do you want this Court to -- 

THE COURT:  Well, let me clarify what I 

think was being asked of me.  I think what I've been 

asked to do is -- and again, this was Mr. Okazaki's 

suggestion or -- is, you know, can the special 

fiduciary identify property.  And as we're -- as 

we've discussed here, there are disputes about 

whether even a building that's affixed to the ground 

or a silo that is affixed to the ground becomes a 

fixture.  You know, whether that's a fixture that 

becomes part of the realty or remains personal.  And 

that's obviously a legal issue that is for the Court 

to determine upon a presentation of the facts.  

But there needs to be at some point an 

inventory, whether provided by the former trustees or 

developed by the special fiduciary.  This is going to 

be a work in progress that will need to be compiled.  

And if the cities would instruct their police 

officers to make themselves available to 

facilitate -- to accompany and facilitate and ensure 

that a representative of the special fiduciary could 

at least enter a property to identify assets that the 

trust claims as its own -- as part of the trust res, 

then it makes -- seems to make some sense to me that 

police -- that that's a part of keeping the peace 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

In the matter of UEP Trust * July 22, 2010 

CITICOURT, LLC
801.532.3441

82

function that police do on a regular basis.  And that 

doesn't strike me as an unreasonable request. 

MR. HAMILTON:  Your Honor, this is 

Blake Hamilton.  May I respond to this, please?  

THE COURT:  Please. 

MR. HAMILTON:  First of all, cities have 

no desire to not obey court orders.  

The police officers have no desire to not 

obey court orders.  Police officers have continued -- 

again, there's only been one cited historically.  

There was a response being worked on at the very 

moment to respond to his report.  That has not been 

filed yet.  And now because of what the Court has 

done, I'm not sure we will actually file a response 

because the Court has ordered that there actually be 

contempt or order to show cause actions brought.  

However -- 

THE COURT:  No, I didn't order anything.  

I have said if there is documentation and a party is 

prepared to proceed with -- or believes that an order 

to show cause should be held, they can bring that 

matter to the Court, and the Court will consider it 

and will schedule, if necessary, a hearing and will 

make a determination.  

I haven't ordered anything other than that 
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that be -- that that request be brought through the 

proper process.  That's all I've done.  

MR. HAMILTON:  Okay, your Honor.  But I'm 

trying to understand what you are now saying.  You, 

from the sounds of it, you're asking the police 

officers to come -- the police officers will keep the 

peace.  That's what they have been trying to do.  But 

are you asking the police officers to come out, allow 

some -- allow a representative of the trust to pick a 

lock, open a property to determine if it is occupied 

or not?  

THE COURT:  I am asking that a police 

officer or that the police department assist at a 

reasonable time that -- that at reasonable times and 

places property be opened for inspection.  

Now, whether that's -- I'm not saying you 

pick locks or whatever.  But what I am saying is -- 

because I don't know whose locks they are, and I 

don't know who's alleging what about actions that 

have been taken.  

MR. PARKER:  Because, your Honor, this is 

Rod.  

And that's exactly the problem with all of 

these requests for these sweeping sort of 

authorizations and things like that is because you 
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don't know how they're going to be applied and I -- 

THE COURT:  Well, but everything is 

governed by a rule of reasonableness, counsel.  And 

there are reasonable times and places where a 

property can be entered, especially when a police 

officer is there to ensure that the peace is kept, 

and for the limited purpose of making an inventory 

and assessing the status of assets. 

MR. RICHARDS:  Your Honor, I think I can 

set this down.  This is Mr. Richards.  

I think that probably (inaudible).  And I 

do want to clarify.  I was simply seeking a response 

from the city in trying to figure out what their 

position is on this and whether or not there is a way 

for them to cooperate with the special fiduciary.  It 

seems to me the appropriate approach is for the Court 

to encourage the fiduciary and the police department 

to sit down and talk to one another, to discuss what 

the police department issues are and what they 

consider to be an improper process, improper 

inventory, improper (inaudible) or entering a 

property.  

And if there is an impasse there and the 

two cannot work something out, then to bring that 

back to the Court and get further direction from it.  
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I think that would make the most sense at this point, 

rather than trying to argue out the details of all of 

that right now. 

THE COURT:  Well, and I want to make sure 

that it is understood, and I don't want words put in 

my mouth.  I don't want to have this -- my comments 

about what I believe is -- at some point somebody is 

going to have to inventory.  And so a suggestion was 

that if the city were prepared to assist in 

facilitating and accompany an inventory process, 

however that is structured.  I'm not saying that that 

should be put into place tomorrow.  I'm not even 

suggesting how it needs to be done.  

It's -- there has been an indication 

raised by Mr. Okazaki that an inventory is 

appropriate and some kind of list developed if 

those -- if that information is not reasonably or 

readily available to the fiduciary because that 

information that has not been provided by the former 

trustees, at some point that's going to have to 

happen.  And when and how that should happen, I'm not 

dictating at this point.  I'm simply saying it is 

appropriate to discuss it.  It is appropriate to seek 

the city's assistance in that.  And that's as far as 

I'm going with that today. 
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MR. HAMILTON:  Your Honor, and again this 

is Blake Hamilton, I just -- I will reiterate that 

the city has no desire to not obey orders.  

In fact, again there's only been one side 

of the story told today.  

THE COURT:  Well, I have listened to at 

least one portion of a -- of a statement by a police 

officer saying Utah judges don't have authority to do 

anything in Arizona.  And -- and essentially not 

recognizing the Court's authority to issue any orders 

that would be binding. 

MR. HAMILTON:  Well, your Honor, we're 

working on those issues.  

But again, they have been put in a very 

difficult situation.  Most of the time, most issues 

brought in Mr. Richards' report, the people have not 

shown their leases or have not shown their occupancy 

agreements and have not been willing to do so.  

THE COURT:  Well, I think that in fairness 

that, unfortunately, cuts both ways.  But it has not 

been honored both ways, at least on the allegations 

that have been brought to me.  

We'll wait to see what the evidence shows.  

But let's just say that when there are claims that 

somebody -- well, I'll cease, I'll stop.  
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MR. HAMILTON:  And your Honor, again, if I 

may, there are processes for the special fiduciary to 

follow.  He can file abandonment actions.  He can 

file unlawful detainer actions if he wants to make it 

to (inaudible), if a property has been abandoned or 

evictions or has been left.  So -- you know, but the 

cities will cooperate.  

MR. RICHARDS:  That's great.  I appreciate 

that, Blake.  Maybe you can have some input as we go 

forward here. 

MR. HAMILTON:  Okay.  

THE COURT:  I -- Mr. Richards, this was 

convened at your request.  Have we covered the issues 

that you felt needed to be addressed?  

MR. RICHARDS:  Yeah.  There's nothing 

else, Judge. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Does anybody else have 

any other issues that need to be addressed at this 

point?  

MR. HAMILTON:  No, your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Hearing none, we're done. 

MR. RICHARDS:  Thank you, thank you. 

MR. JEFF SHIELDS:  Thank you, your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Bye-bye. 

MR. PARKER:  Thank you, your Honor.
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MR. RICHARDS:  Thanks a lot, your Honor.

(Concluded at 4:30 p.m.)

--oOo--
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